
Questions Related to 
Financial and Compliance Audit of the Colorado Judicial Branch 

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018 
 

Answers to Inquiries are listed below in BOLD type: 
 

1. Does OSA have any information regarding fundamental changes, known 
or anticipated, in the structure of the Judicial Branch that could impact its 
mission, reporting structure, or its finance function organizational 
structure?  
 
According to the Department, there are no known or anticipated 
changes in the structure of the Judicial Branch that could impact its 
mission, reporting structure, or its finance function organizational 
structure. 
 

2. Are there any significant events or transactions in 2018 that are different, 
new or unusual that may materially impact the audit? 
 
According to the Department, there are no significant events or 
transactions in 2018 that are different, new, or unusual that may 
materially impact the audit. 
 

3. Historically, the Judicial Branch has not expended federal funds at a level 
requiring Uniform Guidance audit procedures.  Is any anticipated over the 
maximum term of the RFP contract? 
 
The Department did not have any major programs tested by the auditor 
for the last few years.    The OSA will advise if there is a program to test 
based on our preliminary major program determination that will be 
completed in March/April.  In addition, it is the contractor’s 
responsibility to review the listing of major programs to confirm the 
OSA’s preliminary determination through its own review.  During the 
audit, the contractor should also use the Department’s Fiscal Year 2017 
information in conjunction with the statewide major program threshold 
information to identify any other programs that may not have been 
identified during preliminary determination, and contact the OSA 
liaison, as applicable.   
 

4. Are there any known or anticipated changes in the use or structure of the 
CORE system other than routine modifications & improvements? 
 
At this time, there are no anticipated changes in the use or structure of 
the CORE system other than routine modifications & improvements. 
 

5. In light of the recent construction of the new Judicial facilities, are there 
known or anticipated significant capital assets projects over the maximum 
term of the RFP contract? 



 
The Judicial Department anticipates significant capital asset projects 
over the term of the RFP contract. 
 

6. Were the deadlines on page 8 of the RFP, such as the delivery of journal 
entries and final audit findings and recommendations met this past year? 

Due to the implementation of CORE in Fiscal Year 2015, there have been 
times during the previous three years’ audits when OSA deadlines have 
been extended by the OSA due to unforeseen circumstances; however, 
predecessor auditors have generally met deadlines. 

7. Regarding D (page 5) of the RFP, is it common for the auditor of the Judicial 
Branch to testify before an audit or legislative committee? 

It is not common for the auditors of the Judicial Branch to testify before 
the Legislative Audit Committee but it is always a possibility.  

8. For this RFP, who will comprise the selection committee (i.e., Office of the 
State Auditor personnel, Judicial Branch personnel, etc.)? 

The evaluation committee consists of OSA Personnel (Staff, Deputy State 
Auditor, and State Auditor). The OSA offers to share all proposals with 
the applicable department staff and considers any department feedback.  
For more information about the proposal evaluation, please refer to the 
Section III, Proposal Evaluation Process, of the RFP document. 

9. Have there been any issues with the Judicial Branch’s current external 
auditors, and will they be invited to bid? 

Per RFP Section I, Part N, any firm providing financial and compliance 
audit services for the Department under contract with the State Auditor 
in previous years may bid on this contract providing that the lead partner, 
under the proposal, has not performed audit services beyond a total 
maximum of five years in a 10-year period. The firm who conducted the 
most recent financial audit of the Colorado Judicial Department for Fiscal 
Year 2017 is eligible to bid on the Fiscal Year 2018 audit. 

10. What were the fees paid for the last three audit years (2017, 2016, and 
2015, respectively)? 

Fiscal Year 2017: $51,810 

Fiscal Year 2016: $50,300 

Fiscal Year 2015: $49,800 

11. Historically, how many auditors does the Judicial Branch have on-site 
during audit interim fieldwork and final fieldwork? 

This specific information was not provided to us. The contractor 
awarded the audit is responsible for determining the audit strategy and 



is ultimately responsible for determining the number of auditors 
needed to effectively complete audit objectives.   
 

12. How many adjustments were proposed during the most recent audit and 
how many were recorded and how many were waived?  Were any of the 
adjustments repeats from prior year audits? 
 
The Statewide Fiscal Year 2017 audit is still in progress.  Our opinion has 
not been issued and the report has not yet been released.  This 
information will be available subsequent to contract award. 

13. What software systems does the Judicial Branch utilize that are significant 
to the audit? 

According to the Department, in addition to CORE and CPPS, the Judicial 
Department uses ICON/Eclipse/JPOD.  This is a case management system 
that tracks all aspects (including financial) of court cases.  From this 
system, court revenue is tracked and transferred to CORE on a monthly 
basis.  The Judicial Department also uses JETRS, a Time & Leave system.   

The Office of the Alternative Defense Counsel utilizes its own contractor 
billing system that uploads payments to CORE.   

The Office of the Child’s Representative uses a case management/billing 
system (CARES) to pay contract attorneys.  This system is in the process 
of being replaced with a new system anticipated to go-live on April 1, 
2018.  The Office of the Child’s Representative also uses in-house 
developed databases to track applications, contract attorney compliance, 
etc.  This system does not interface with CORE and is not financial in 
nature. 

14. What is the preferred timing of interim and year-end fieldwork? How long 
did fieldwork take place on site at the Department in the prior year? 
 

Interim fieldwork related to the financial audit can begin as soon as the OSA 
has a completed contract with the awarded firm, a signed engagement letter 
has been obtained from the Department management, and a combined 
entrance conference has been held with the Department/contract 
auditor/OSA. The firm awarded the contract may contact the Department to 
determine the best timing for performing fiscal year-end audit work. In 
general, work may be performed at interim, with testwork related to 
coverage through the end of the year performed at a later time. Fiscal year-
end financial compliance work may begin at a time subsequent to the 
entrance conference as agreed upon by the contractor and the Department. 
Remaining fiscal year-end financial work may begin after fiscal year end close, 
which is approximately the beginning of August.  All testing generally needs 
to be done based on the associated attest due dates as noted in the RFP 
documents. This timing is normally discussed during the entrance conference.  
 



The OSA is unaware of any preferred or unavailable dates by the Department. 
This can also be discussed during the entrance conference.  

 
15. Who will be the client liaison with OSA and the auditors, providing the 

information required for the audit?  How long has the liaison been with 
the Department? 
 
According to the Department, the main Judicial Department contact will 
be Myra Dukes.  She is the Controller and has 23 years of experience.  
Janet Miks, Accounting Manager, will assist her.  She has been with the 
Department for 6 months and has over 17 years of experience with the 
State of Colorado in financial positions.  Other contacts listed below: 
Public Defender – Karen Porter – 27 years 
Alternate Defense Counsel – Daniel Nunez 
Child’s Representative – Mark Teska; 3 years 
Respondent Parents’ Counsel – Linda Edwards 
 

16. How many funds does the Department have? 
 
According to the Department, the Judicial Department has activity in 
approximately 50 funds.  However many of these funds are used solely 
to pass funds through to other Departments.  Therefore, the 
Department actually operates in approximately 20 funds.  The Alternate 
Defense Council has 2 funds and the Office of the Child’s Representative 
and the Public Defender have 1 fund. 
 

17. How does the Office of the State Court Administrator interface with the 
Department?  Is this office included in the audit of the Department? 
 
The Office of the State Court Administrator is the central administrative 
office within the Department and is included in the audit.   

 
18. Does the audit require site visits?  If so, please list the sites we would be 

required to visit. 
 
The contractor awarded the audit is responsible for determining the 
audit strategy and is ultimately responsible for determining the 
necessity of site visits to effectively complete audit objectives.   
 

19. Does the Department have current internal control documentation 
(written policy and procedures) over significant transaction classes? 
 
According to the Department, there are written fiscal rules. 
 
 

20. Can the financial information be accessed through the Department’s 
software or CORE?  If so, would this include access to scanned images or 
original source documents? 



 
If the Department gives permission, the OSA can help contract auditors 
obtain read-only access to CORE.  The Judicial Department records all of 
its financial activity in CORE, but scanned backup documentation for the 
transactions is not attached. 
 

21. Will the Department be able to provide total transaction populations for 
us to pull our samples from? 
 
According to the Department, it is possible to obtain total transaction 
populations for samples; however, CORE is complicated and the 
numbering sequences for various types of transactions cross all State 
Departments.  The case processing system is also complicated and has 
many transactions.  The Department will work with the auditors to 
explain how the system works and how to best sample the data.  In 
some instances, detail transactions will need to be broken down into 
multiple Excel files as the number of lines of transactions exceeds the 
maximum row limit. 
 
 

22. Is there an audit performed on the State’s global payroll system?  If so, 
can the auditors of the other State departments rely on this system wide 
audit or is an audit of the payroll system expected within each 
department? 
 
Some payroll testing is performed centrally by the OSA; however, 
contractors are required to complete audit programs associated with 
payroll and may be asked to test payroll transactions if the fund is 
selected as a lead or statistical sample. 

 
 

23. Were there any known instances of fraud or illegal acts during the current 
fiscal year, or previous three fiscal years? 
 
The OSA is unaware of any know instances of fraud or illegal acts for the 
Department during Fiscal Year 2018 or the three previous fiscal years.  
According to the Department, they are also not aware of any fraud or 
material noncompliance that may have occurred during that time 
frame.   
 

24. Were there any major IT system failures/issues/etc. noted during the 
current year? 
 
According to the Department, there were not. 
 

25. Does the OSA expect an IT auditor to be used on these engagements or 
will the OSA continue to test CORE and provide a specific IT program to 
contractors for use at the individual departments? 



 
The OSA has an IT audit team that tests CORE and other relevant 
systems; however, there is an IT audit program that each Department 
audit team, including the Judicial audit team, will need to complete and 
submit to the OSA.  This testing includes logical access testing for the 
Department’s staff access to CORE, and CPPS (the State’s Payroll 
system), ensuring the Department is properly securing data extracts 
from these systems, and that access that the Department grants to its 
staff is appropriate.  The Judicial auditors are also responsible for 
identifying any financially significant information systems used by the 
Department besides CORE and CPPS, and reporting those to the OSA for 
consideration of the type and testing to perform.  
 

26. Can you identify changes to key personnel in the Department in the last 
two years? 
 
According to the Department, the prior State Court Administrator 
retired as of 6/30/2017.  The new State Court Administrator, Chris Ryan, 
has been with the Department for many years.  There have been a 
number of retirements statewide in district administrator and clerk of 
court positions over the past few years.   
 

27. Does the Department utilize outside service providers for any significant 
functions? 
 
The Judicial Department uses an outside vendor to assist with the “e-
filing” of court cases and the Office of the Child’s Representative uses an 
outside vendor for IT support. 
 

28. Are you currently aware of any areas for which the OSA would like 
additional audit procedures performed beyond the standard audit plan or 
mentioned in the RFP? 
 
The OSA is not currently aware of any areas requiring additional audit 
procedures performed beyond the standard audit plan. 
 

29. What types of problems, if any, have been encountered during recent 
audits that caused delays in meeting OSA deadlines? 
 
Due to the implementation of CORE in Fiscal Year 2015, there have been 
times during the previous three years’ audits when OSA deadlines have 
been extended by the OSA due to unforeseen circumstances; however, 
predecessor auditors have generally met deadlines. 

30. Does the Department have any unusual or complex accounting issues? 
 
According to the Department, the only unusual or complex accounting 
issues revolve around accounting for COPs. 



 
31. Have there been any changes in the IT systems in the last year? 

 
According to the Department, the Office of the Child’s Representative 
will have a new case management/billing system to pay contract 
attorneys that will go-live on April 1, 2018. 
 

32. As the Statewide audits for 2017 are not currently available, were there 
any deficiencies in internal control reported in the 2017 audit?  In 
addition, were there any verbal comments or control deficiencies and if 
so, was a management letter issued? 
 
The Statewide Fiscal Year 2017 audit is still in progress.  Our opinion has 
not been issued and the report has not yet been released.  This 
information will be available upon award of the contract. 

 
33. Will all questions and answers generated from this RFP be included as an 

addendum and distributed? 
 
All firms who provided questions will receive a list of all questions asked 
along with responses to these questions. In addition, the list of inquiries 
along with answers to those inquiries will be posted on the OSA website 
at http://leg.colorado.gov/agencies/office-state-auditor/requests-
proposals. 
 

34. Is there a process for posting follow-up questions after receipt and review 
of the Office of the State Auditor inquiry response document? 
 
The OSA accepted all written inquiries concerning the RFPs that were 
submitted by 5pm MT January 24th, 2018. There is no process for follow-
up questions to be submitted and addressed subsequent to that 
timeframe. Please refer to the Section I, Part H of the RFP, for the 
schedule for the proposal process. 
 

35. Is there an anticipated system conversion in the next year? 
 
According to the Department, the Office of the Child’s Representative 
will have a new case management/billing system to pay contract 
attorneys that will go-live on April 1, 2018. 
 

 

http://leg.colorado.gov/agencies/office-state-auditor/requests-proposals
http://leg.colorado.gov/agencies/office-state-auditor/requests-proposals

